



COLORADO

Parks and Wildlife

Department of Natural Resources

1313 Sherman, Room 111
Denver, CO 80203
P 303.866.3203

TO: Members of the Colorado Parks and Wildlife Commission
FROM: Krista Heiner, Regulations Manager
RE: November 2019 Parks and Wildlife Commission Meeting, Regulatory Items
DATE: November 1, 2019

The regulatory items detailed below are scheduled to be addressed at the Colorado Parks and Wildlife Commission's November 14-15, 2019 meeting in Wray.

If there are questions about any of the agenda items below, or if additional information is needed, please feel free to contact me at 303-866-3203 x4609.

FINAL REGULATIONS (PARKS and WILDLIFE):

Agenda Item 9 - Chapter P-7 - "Passes, Permits, and Registrations" - 2 CCR 405-7

Open for final consideration of regulations including, but not limited to, the following:

- Setting the platform for the future issuance of electronic parks passes, including adding a definition of a "parks pass" to regulation.
- Creating a transferable annual parks pass.

Agenda Item 10 - Chapter W-0 - "General Provisions" 2 CCR 406-0, and those related provisions of Chapter W-2 ("Big Game" 2 CCR 406-2), Chapter W-3 ("Furbearers and Small Game, Except Migratory Birds" 2 CCR 406-3), Chapter W-15 ("Division Agents" 2 CCR 406-15), and Chapter P-7 ("Passes, Permits and Registrations" - 2 CCR 405-7) necessary to accommodate changes to or ensure consistency with Chapter W-0

Open for annual review and final consideration of regulations including, but not limited to, adjusting license fees and license agent commission rates according to adjustments to the Denver-Aurora-Lakewood Consumer Price Index.

Agenda Item 11 - Chapter W-0 - "General Provisions" - 2 CCR 406-0

Open for final consideration of regulations including, but not limited to, the following:

- Updating the annual license year regulation to address dual license year concerns.
- Adding electronic licenses to the definition of a license, to allow for the future issuance of electronic licenses.

Agenda Item 12 - Chapter W-1- "Fishing" - 2 CCR 406-1

Open for annual review and final consideration of the entire chapter including, but not limited to, consideration of regulations regarding season dates, bag and possession limits, licensing requirements, manner of take provisions and special conditions or restrictions applicable to waters of the state. Specific considerations include, but are not limited to, the following:



- Extending the spring fishing closure to March 15 through May 31 on Canyon Creek, Grizzly Creek, No Name Creek, Fourmile Creek, and Threemile Creek and their confluence with middle Colorado River and lower Roaring Fork River.
- Implementing a new spring and fall spawning closure on Elk Creek and its confluence with the Colorado River from March 15 through May 15 and from October 1 through November 30.
- Implementing artificial flies and lures only and catch and release regulations on a 2.1-mile stretch of the Uncompahgre River within the City of Montrose.
- Establishing a catch and release regulation for all bass and a bag and possession of one channel catfish on Valco Ponds #4-7.

Agenda Item 13 - Chapter W-3 - "Furbearers and Small Game, except Migratory Birds" - 2 CCR 406-3

Open for annual review and final consideration of regulations regarding turkey hunting, including but not limited to, license areas and limited license numbers, season dates, and manner of take provisions for the 2020 turkey hunting seasons. Specific considerations include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Extending the spring turkey season through May 31 annually.
- Converting spring turkey hunting licenses for GMU 30 from limited to unlimited.
- Creating a new, private land only, limited spring turkey hunt code for GMU 23.

Agenda Item 14 - Chapter W-9 - "Wildlife Properties" - 2 CCR 406-9

Open for consideration of final regulations including, but not limited to, the following:

- Establishing property-specific regulations and reservation requirements for Flanders Ranch State Wildlife Area.
- Adding Brett Gray Ranch, Queens and Pawnee Valley to the general State Trust Lands provisions index table.
- Revising current regulations to conform to state and federal disability law.

Agenda Item 15 - Chapter W-17 - "Damage Caused by Wildlife" 2 CCR 406-17 and those related provisions of Chapter W-0 ("General Provisions" 2 CCR 406-0) and Chapter W-3 ("Furbearers and Small Game, except Migratory Birds" 2 CCR 406-3) necessary to accommodate changes to or ensure consistency with Chapter W-17

Open for consideration of final regulations including, but not limited to, the following:

- Establishing dispatch rules for live-trapped wildlife.
- Revising trapping regulations to maintain consistency with Colorado Department of Agriculture rules.
- Revising dog hazing of geese regulations to allow year round hazing as long as no geese are killed or injured in the process.

CITIZEN PETITION (WILDLIFE):

Agenda Item 19 - Chapter W-2 - "Big Game" - 2 CCR 406-2

At its November meeting, the Commission will consider a Citizen Petition for Rulemaking related to big game, as follows:

- A Citizen Petition for Rulemaking requesting that the Commission make Game Management Unit (GMU) 83 limited for elk hunting during the second and third regular rifle seasons.

The Commission may accept all or a portion of this petition for final action, further consideration or otherwise reject the petition at the November Commission Meeting.

ISSUE IDENTIFICATION (PARKS and WILDLIFE):

Agenda Item 20 - Chapter W-2 - "Big Game" - 2 CCR 406-2

Open for annual review of the entire chapter, including, but not limited to:

- Limiting second and third rifle elk seasons in GMU 83.
- Expanding the Rabbit Mountain antlerless elk hunt code boundary.
- Converting certain antlered elk hunt codes in E-2 to either-sex elk hunt codes, and creating a separate hunt code for GMU 214.
- Adding GMU 591 to the list of elk antler point restricted units.
- Separating GMUs 59 and 581 for private-land-only antlerless elk hunt codes and eliminating unnecessary hunt codes for E-23.
- Adding archery, muzzleloader and rifle antlerless moose hunt codes east of the Peak-to-Peak Highway in GMU 38.
- Separating GMU 361 from GMU 36 for antlered moose hunt codes and creating antlerless moose hunt codes for both units.
- Converting the antlered moose license in GMU 65 to an either-sex license.
- Adding a ram bighorn sheep archery season to S-66.
- Eliminating the ewe bighorn sheep season in S-35.
- Creating two ram bighorn sheep rifle seasons in S-15 and changing the dates of the ewe bighorn sheep season in S-15 accordingly.
- Adding a second archery season for bighorn sheep in S-69.
- Adding a rifle hunt code for ram bighorn sheep in S-70 and removing S-70 from the current archery hunt code.
- Creating nanny-only mountain goat licenses for all rifle seasons in G-10.
- Combining the four individual nanny-only mountain goat rifle seasons in G-15 into one nanny-only season concurrent with the four either-sex mountain goat rifle seasons in G-15.
- Opening GMU 471 to mountain lion hunting, combining GMU 45 and 44 into one hunt code, and combining GMUs 47, 43 and 471 into one hunt code.
- Splitting GMU 76 from GMUs 79 and 791 to create two separate mountain lion hunt codes.
- Creating list B, private-land-only, mule-deer-only, antlered rifle licenses for a subunit of GMU 951.
- Adding private-land-only, either-sex deer hunt codes for GMUs 62, 64, 65 and 411.
- Adding second and third season rifle antlerless deer hunt codes in GMUs 55, 66, 67 and 551.

Agenda Item 21 - Chapter W-2 - "Big Game" - 2 CCR 406-2

Discussion on limiting archery elk licenses in E-16, E-24, E-30, and E-31 and potential associated 2020-2024 Big Game Season Structure (BGSS) changes.

Agenda Item 22 - Chapter P-7 - "Passes, Permits and Registrations" - 2 CCR 405-7

Open for annual review of the entire chapter, including, but not limited to:

- Increasing fees for daily vehicle park passes by \$1.

CITIZEN PETITIONS (WILDLIFE):

Agenda Item 26 - Chapter W-0 - "General Provisions" - 2 CCR 406-0 and those related provisions of Chapter W-3 ("Furbearers and Small Game, except Migratory Birds" 2 CCR 406-3) necessary to accommodate changes to, or ensure consistency with, Chapter W-0

At its November meeting, the Commission will consider a Citizen Petition for Rulemaking related to a new discounted license combination, as follows:

- A Citizen Petition for Rulemaking requesting that the Commission create a reduced price senior small game and fishing combination license.

The Commission may accept all or a portion of this petition for final action, further consideration or otherwise reject the petition at the November Commission Meeting.

Agenda Item 27 - Chapter W-2 - "Big Game" - 2 CCR 406-2

At its November meeting, the Commission will consider Citizen Petitions for Rulemaking related to big game, as follows:

- Two separate Citizen Petitions for Rulemaking requesting that the Commission allow the use of stone broadheads/projectiles for archery hunting.
- A Citizen Petition for Rulemaking requesting that the Commission allow the use of an atlatl for big game hunting during archery and other big game seasons.

The Commission may accept all or a portion of these petitions for final action, further consideration or otherwise reject the petitions at the November Commission Meeting.

Agenda Item 28 - Chapter W-2 - "Big Game" - 2 CCR 406-2 and those related provisions of Chapter W-16 ("Parks and Wildlife Procedural Rules" - 2 CCR 406-16) necessary to accommodate changes to, or ensure consistency with, Chapter W-2

At its November meeting, the Commission will consider a Citizen Petition for Rulemaking related to reissuing licenses, as follows:

- A Citizen Petition for Rulemaking requesting that the Commission allow the sale of all returned big game licenses at all licensing vendors and online, even after a season has started.

The Commission may accept all or a portion of this petition for final action, further consideration or otherwise reject the petition at the November Commission Meeting.

CONSENT AGENDA (WILDLIFE):

Chapter W-0 - "General Provisions" - 2 CCR 406-0 and those related provisions of Chapter W-5 ("Small Game - Migratory Birds" 2 CCR 406-5) and Chapter W-2 ("Big Game" 2 CCR 406-2) necessary to accommodate changes to or ensure consistency with Chapter W-0

Open for annual review of the entire chapter, including but not limited to:

- Adding the letter X to the list of hunt code manners of take to denote season choice licenses.
- Authorizing the use of a TAN number as valid documentation of Colorado Waterfowl and Federal Duck Stamp purchase for up to 14 days from date of purchase.
- Updating the counties listed for the boundary description of GMUs 20 and 521.

- Modifying the GMU boundaries for S-11, S-13, S-17 and S-26 to follow roads and trails rather than river drainages.
- Combining mountain goat units G-3 and G-13 into a single GMU that matches the current boundary for sheep unit S-11 and updating the related hunt codes.

Chapter W-2 - "Big Game" 2 CCR 406-2

Open for annual review of the entire chapter, including but not limited to:

- Designating all general bear licenses in B-6 as list B, and all private-land-only bear licenses as list C.
- Amending the boundary description for the private-land-only deer hunt codes in GMU 38.
- Converting archery deer licenses in D-15 from either-sex to antlered.
- Increasing the late antlerless elk hunt season length in the Jefferson County portion of GMU 38 from December 1st to January 31st to September 1st to January 31st.
- Extending the closing date for the private-land-only antlerless elk hunt in GMUs 3, 4, 5, 301 and 441 to December 31st, removing GMU 214 from EF003P5R and removing GMU 441 from EF014P5R.
- Adding a private-land-only late antlerless elk season in GMU 42.
- Removing the elk 4-point antler restriction for all San Luis Valley game damage hunt codes.
- Removing the GMU boundary split for antlerless elk in the 2nd, 3rd and 4th rifle seasons in GMU 521, and updating the applicable hunt codes.
- Removing the private-land-only either-sex elk hunt code in GMU 38.
- Separating GMUs 50 and 501 from current moose hunt codes and creating new moose hunt codes that include GMUs 50, 51, 59, 501, 511, and 581.
- Creating antlerless moose licenses for GMU 76.
- Extending the pronghorn season in GMUs 9 and 191 to the end of January.

FINAL REGULATIONS - CHAPTER P-7 - PASSES, PERMITS AND REGISTRATIONS

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS AND FEES RELATING TO PASSES, PERMITS AND REGISTRATIONS

VEHICLE PASSES

700 - VEHICLE PASS

1. Except as otherwise provided in these regulations or by Colorado Revised Statutes, no motor vehicle shall be brought onto any state recreation area or state park unless a valid parks pass issued by the Division is properly attached or displayed in the vehicle. Passes that are designed to be affixed to the windshield shall be attached to the extreme lower right-hand corner of the vehicle's windshield in a position so that the pass may be observed and identified. For an annual affixed vehicle pass, including an aspen leaf annual pass to be properly attached to a windshield it must be permanently affixed. A state parks annual ~~hang-tag~~transferable pass must be hung from the rear-view mirror so that the pass may be observed and identified. Any vehicle whereby a pass cannot be secured inside the passenger compartment or hung from a rear-view mirror shall be treated as a special case, but evidence of a pass shall be required on the person or in the vehicle.
 - (A) As referenced in this chapter, "veteran" means a person who served in the active military, naval, or air service and who was discharged or released under conditions other than dishonorable.
2. No vehicle pass shall be required for:
 - a. Any snowmobile as defined in section 33-14-101, C.R.S.;
 - b. Any off-highway vehicle as defined in section 33-14.5-101(3), C.R.S.;
 - c. Any government-owned vehicle, emergency vehicle, or law enforcement vehicle on official business;
 - d. Any commercial delivery vehicle delivering goods to the park or a park concessionaire when the goods are directly related to the operation of the park or concession;
 - e. Any resident's vehicle displaying a Colorado disabled veteran's license plate pursuant to section 42-3-213(5)(a), C.R.S., and as provided for in section 33-12-106(1), C.R.S.;
 - f. Any vehicle bringing a holder of a Columbine, Centennial, Blue Spruce, Volunteer or Military Pass issued pursuant to # 701 into a state recreation area or state park.
 - g. Any vehicle that is not required to have a vehicle pass pursuant to the special activity regulation # 703;
 - h. Any vehicle entering a state recreation area or state park pursuant to # 712-4.
 - i. Any vehicle that is exclusively towed.

- j. Any vehicle occupied by a veteran or current or reserve member of any branch of the armed forces of the United States, on the State observance of Veteran's Day. At least one form of past or present military identification shall be presented at the Park entrance. Acceptable forms of military identification include:
 - (1) DD214;
 - (2) DD Form 2;
 - (3) DD Form 2765;
 - (4) Active, retired or veteran military identification cards;
 - (5) A current Colorado Driver's License or state issued identification card with the word 'Veteran' printed on it as specified in 42-2-303 (5)(a), C.R.S.;
 - (6) VA medical card;
 - (7) The display of military license plates.
 - k. Any Division employee, volunteer or hired contractor vehicle when such vehicle is used for the purposes of accomplishing work duties.
 - l. Any vehicle owned by a concession owner or employee or any contractor working for a concession when such vehicle is used for the purposes of accomplishing work duties.
 - m. Any vehicle entering the Cameo Shooting and Education Complex.
3. The types of annual vehicle passes available from the Division are as follows:
- a. An Aspen Leaf annual vehicle pass as provided for in section 33-12-103, C.R.S.; and
 - b. An annual affixed vehicle pass, which is available for any vehicle except passenger vans and buses operated by a commercial business, and
 - c. A state parks annual ~~hang tag~~transferable pass, which can be used for any vehicle except passenger vans and buses operated by a commercial business. State parks annual ~~hang tag~~transferable passes are issued to individuals, not vehicles. Only one vehicle at a time can use an annual ~~hang tag~~transferable pass.
 - (1) Commercial passenger vans and buses are eligible to purchase daily, but not annual, vehicle passes.
 - (2) School buses on official school outings, passenger vans and buses operated by a nonprofit corporation or organization as defined in 13-21-115.5 (3), C.R.S., and passenger vans and buses operated by any government agency are eligible for either daily or annual affixed vehicle passes.
 - (3) An annual transferable pass may be shared with the original pass holder's household. For the purpose of this regulation, "household" is defined as persons living at the same address.
4. Daily vehicle passes are as follows:
- a. A fee of \$8.00 per vehicle for any vehicle except for:

- (1) Passenger vans and buses operated by a commercial business;
 - (2) A \$1.00 per vehicle capacity fee will be added to the cost of daily vehicle passes at Cherry Creek, Chatfield, and Boyd Lake State Recreation Areas, and Eldorado Canyon State Parks.
- b. School buses on official school outings, passenger vans and buses operated by a nonprofit corporation or organization as defined in 13-21-115.5 (3), C.R.S., and passenger vans and buses operated by any government agency are eligible to purchase a daily vehicle pass.
 - c. For passenger vans and buses operated by a commercial business, the daily vehicle pass fee will be based upon the number of passengers on-board. The fee shall be \$10.00 for up to fifteen passengers on-board, \$40.00 for sixteen to thirty passengers on-board, and \$50.00 for more than thirty passengers on-board.
5. An annual affixed vehicle pass or state parks annual ~~hang tag transferable~~ pass shall be issued and, by appropriate language, authorize entrance by motor vehicle to all state recreation areas and state parks during the period beginning on the date of purchase through the last day of the same month in the following year. Such authorization shall apply to the user and all passengers in the motor vehicle to which the pass is affixed or displayed. One pass shall cover all state recreation areas and state parks.
 6. Additional affixed annual vehicle passes may be issued to an owner or to the owner's ~~immediate family members household~~. Additional annual affixed vehicle passes authorize entrance by motor vehicle to all state recreation areas and state parks during the period beginning on the date of purchase of the additional pass through the expiration date of the associated original full-priced annual affixed pass or state parks annual ~~hang tag transferable~~ pass. Owners of school buses, passenger vans and buses owned by a nonprofit corporation or organization as defined in 13-21-115.5 (3), C.R.S., and passenger vans and buses owned by any government agency are limited to purchasing no more than two additional annual affixed vehicle passes at a reduced fee per each annual affixed vehicle pass purchased at the full fee. For the purpose of this regulation, ~~"household immediate family members" are is~~ defined as ~~persons spouses and children with valid driver's licenses~~ living at the same address. "Owner" is defined as the person whose name appears on the registration of both the original vehicle for which an annual affixed pass was purchased and the additional vehicle, or a person who can provide proof of ownership of the original and the additional vehicle at a designated Division office.
 7. If the motor vehicle for which an annual affixed vehicle pass or additional affixed vehicle pass was issued is sold or traded, or if the pass is lost or destroyed during the period in which it is valid, the person to whom the pass was issued may obtain a duplicate thereof, upon signing an affidavit reciting where and by whom it was issued and the circumstances under which it was lost or traded. Upon payment of a fee of \$5.00, a new affixed pass effective for the remainder of the period that the lost or destroyed pass would have been valid may be issued only by the Division to the original owner of such pass.
 8. If a state parks annual ~~hang tag transferable~~ pass is lost or destroyed during the period for which it is valid, the person whom the pass was issued may obtain a duplicate thereof, upon signing an affidavit where and by whom it was issued and the circumstances under which it was lost or destroyed. Upon payment of a fee of \$60.00, a new pass effective for the remainder of the period the lost or destroyed pass would have been valid may be issued only by the Division to the original owner of such pass. Only one duplicate state parks annual ~~hang tag transferable~~ pass will be issued per period for which the original pass was valid.

9. A daily park pass, valid for one day only, shall authorize entrance by motor vehicle to the state recreation areas and state parks by the user and all passengers in the motor vehicle to which the pass is affixed during the day used and until 12:00 P.M. (noon) the following day.
10. A no fee pass shall be issued to any vehicle towed or carried in by a motor home if a camping permit or proof of a campsite reservation is presented at an attended visitor center, office or entrance station. The no fee pass, valid for the same time period as the camping permit or camping reservation, shall authorize entrance by motor vehicle to the state recreation areas and state parks by the user and all passengers in the motor vehicle to which the pass is affixed. For the purpose of this regulation, motor home means a vehicle designed to provide temporary living quarters and which is built into, as an integral part of or a permanent attachment to, a motor vehicle chassis or van.

INDIVIDUAL PASSES

701 - INDIVIDUAL PASSES

1. Individuals entering state recreation areas and state parks by means other than a motor vehicle, such as on foot, bicycle, horseback, etc., may enter without purchasing a parks pass, except as otherwise required by these regulations. No individual pass shall be required under the circumstances identified in regulation # 700-2.a. through # 700-2.e. and # 700-2.g. through # 700-2.i.
2. A Columbine, Centennial, Blue Spruce, Volunteer or Military Pass is issued to an individual person and not a specific vehicle. These shall authorize entrance by motor vehicle, when and where motor vehicle access is permitted, to all state recreation areas and state parks or for other forms of individual access, when in possession of the pass holder. Such authorization shall apply to the holder of the pass and all the passengers in, and the driver of, the motor vehicle carrying the holder of such pass. The pass must be continuously displayed in the manner described on the pass. A Columbine, Centennial, Blue Spruce, Volunteer or Military Pass is transferable from motor vehicle to motor vehicle as long as the pass holder is present in the vehicle.
3. Any resident of the state who is a first responder with a permanent occupational disability as defined in state statute 33-4-104.5 (2) may obtain, free of charge, a Blue Spruce annual pass, also known as a Columbine annual pass for first responders pursuant to 33-12-103.5 (2.5), C.R.S. The pass will only remain valid as long as the individual maintains their Colorado residency as defined in 33-1-102 (38) (a), C.R.S.
 - a. In order to qualify for a Blue Spruce annual parks pass, a resident must provide the following written proof to the Division:
 - (1) The "Initial Disability Administration Decision" form from the Fire and Police Pension Association that specifies a permanent occupational disability; or
 - (2) For residents that are not members of the Fire and Police Pension Association, a fully completed Division "First Responder Affidavit" signed by the applicant attesting to the fact that their permanent disability or disease was obtained while on active-duty.
4. A disabled resident may obtain a Columbine annual pass pursuant to 33-12-103.5, C.R.S. A resident who qualifies for a Centennial annual pass may obtain such pass as provided for in this regulation. A Columbine or a Centennial annual parks pass shall be issued following the Division's receipt of a completed application from a qualified resident of the state and the payment of the

necessary fee. The pass will only remain valid as long as the individual maintains their Colorado residency as defined in 33-1-102 (38) (a), C.R.S.

- a. In order to qualify for a Columbine annual parks pass, a resident must provide the following written proof to the Division:
 - (1) A letter from the Veterans Administration indicating a 60% or greater overall-combined rating for service-connected disability; or
 - (2) A "Final Admission of Liability" form from the Division of Workers Compensation that indicates a total and permanent disability; or
 - (3) A fully completed Division "Physician's Affidavit" signed by a licensed physician attesting that the resident meets the definition of a total and permanent disability. A "**total and permanent disability**" shall mean any physical or mental impairment which prevents substantial gainful employment, but only if it is reasonably certain that such a disability will continue throughout the lifetime of the disabled person.
- b. In order to qualify for a Centennial annual parks pass, a resident must show a photo identification card and provide written proof, in the form of a federal income tax return from the immediately preceding calendar year, that the federal total annual income of such individual is at or below the threshold amount, based on the number of dependents, for a state parks Centennial annual pass. The pass will only remain valid as long as the individual maintains their Colorado residency as defined in 33-1-102 (38) (a), C.R.S.

The federal total annual income amounts, based on the number of dependents, cannot be greater than those listed in the poverty guidelines set forth in the *Federal Register Volume 82, Number 19* (January 31, 2017) issued by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Planning and Evaluation, Room 422F.5, Humphrey Building, Department of Health and Human Services, Washington, DC 20201 under the authority of 42 U.S.C. 9902(2). This federal guideline, but not later amendments to or editions thereof, has been incorporated by reference. Information regarding how and where the incorporated materials may be examined, or copies obtained, is available from:

Regulations Manager
Policy and Planning Unit
Colorado Division of Parks and Wildlife
1313 Sherman Street, Room 111
Denver, Colorado 80203

If the individual's income is at a level where he or she was not required to file a federal income tax return for the immediately preceding calendar year, such individual shall sign a statement under penalty of perjury in the second degree to such effect. No such affidavit shall be required to be notarized.

- c. The Columbine, Centennial, and Blue Spruce annual parks pass application shall be on a form provided by the Division. Blank applications shall be available, during regular business hours, at the Divisions' regional offices, Denver offices, and service centers.
- d. Individuals applying to the Division for a Columbine, Centennial, or Blue Spruce annual parks pass must provide the following information:
 - (1) Full name and address, including city, county, state and zip code; and

- (2) Phone number, unless the phone number is unlisted or non-published; and
 - (3) Date of birth and age; and
 - (4) Physical description, including sex, height, weight, hair and eye color; and
 - (5) Applicant's signature and date of application; and
 - (6) If applying for a Columbine annual parks, information concerning the nature of the applicant's disability, together with supporting evidence of the same.
 - (7) If applying for a Centennial annual parks pass, information concerning the applicant's total annual income and number of dependents, together with supporting evidence of the same.
 - (8) If applying for a Blue Spruce annual parks pass, information concerning the applicant's first responder service and disability, together with supporting evidence of the same.
- e. The Columbine, Centennial, and Blue Spruce annual parks pass application form shall contain language explaining that the completed and signed application, once submitted to the Division, will be treated in all respects as a sworn statement. The form shall also contain an oath that includes an affirmation attesting to the truth of that which is stated, the applicant is aware that statements made are intended to be represented as true and correct statements, and that false statements are punishable by law.
- f. At the time that an application for a Columbine or a Centennial annual parks pass is submitted to the Division, the appropriate fee shall also be paid.
- g. Pending the issuance of a Columbine, Centennial, Blue Spruce annual parks pass, possession on the applicant of a bona fide copy of the application permits the applicant and others in the motor vehicle carrying the applicant entrance by motor vehicle to all state parks and state recreation areas, when and where motor vehicle access is permitted, for a period of thirty days following the date of filing the application with the Division or until receipt of notice from the Division either granting or denying the application request, whichever period of time is shorter.
- h. Within 15 days of the Division's receipt of a completed Columbine or Centennial annual parks pass application and the appropriate fee payment, or Blue Spruce annual parks pass application, the Division shall review and approve or deny the application.
- (1) Completed applications shall be approved if the minimum qualifications set forth in this regulation are met.
 - (2) Conversely, if the minimum qualifications are not met, then the application shall be denied. The applicant shall be notified in writing within five working days upon denial of a request. Such written notification shall include an explanation of the basis for denial and a refund of any fee paid.
 - (3) The applicant may appeal this decision to the Division Director by notifying the Director in writing within sixty days of the Division's mailing of the denial notice. A faster appeal will be necessary when the calendar year will end prior to the expiration of the sixty-day appeal period.

- (4) The address utilized by the Division for all mailings associated with the processing of a Columbine, Centennial, or Blue Spruce annual parks pass application shall be the address indicated on the application.
 - i. If a Columbine, Centennial, or Blue Spruce annual pass is lost or destroyed during the period of time that it would otherwise would have been valid, the person to whom the pass was issued may obtain a duplicate thereof, upon signing an affidavit reciting where and by whom it was issued and circumstances under which it was lost.
 - (1) Upon payment of a fee of \$5.00, a new pass may be issued only by the Division to the original owner of such Columbine or Centennial annual pass.
5. The receipt for the annual affixed vehicle pass or state parks annual ~~hang-tag~~transferable pass shall be used as an individual annual pass for visitors entering the Arkansas Headwaters Recreation Area, Barr Lake, Crawford, Colorado State Forest, Eldorado Canyon, Elkhead Reservoir, Harvey Gap, Highline Lake, James M. Robb - Colorado River, Lory, Pearl Lake, Rifle Gap, Rifle Falls, Stagecoach, Steamboat Lake, Sweitzer Lake, Sylvan Lake, Trinidad Lake, Vega and Yampa River State Parks.
 6. Individual daily pass fees are as follows:
 - a. A fee of \$4.00 per person for any person of the age of sixteen or more years shall be charged for a daily pass for all visitors entering Barr Lake, Crawford, Colorado State Forest, Eldorado Canyon, Elkhead Reservoir, Harvey Gap, Highline Lake, James M. Robb - Colorado River, Lory, Pearl Lake, Rifle Gap, Rifle Falls, Stagecoach, Steamboat Lake, Sweitzer Lake, Sylvan Lake, Trinidad Lake, Vega and Yampa River State Parks, except those entering the park in a motor vehicle with a valid annual parks pass or state parks annual ~~hang-tag~~transferable pass.
 - b. A fee of \$4.00 per person for any person of the age of sixteen or more years shall be charged for a daily pass for all visitors entering the developed and posted fee sites of Arkansas Headwaters Recreation Area, except those entering the park in a motor vehicle with a valid annual parks pass or state parks annual ~~hang-tag~~transferable pass.
 7. Volunteers for Colorado Parks and Wildlife are eligible for a volunteer park pass while serving in accordance with a signed individual volunteer agreement and after donating a minimum of 48 hours of approved volunteer service within a previous consecutive 12-month period.
 - a. The volunteer park pass is valid for one year from the date of issue.
 8. Volunteers for Colorado Parks and Wildlife who are 64 years of age or older, regardless of their state of residence, are eligible for the senior volunteer park pass while serving in accordance with a signed individual volunteer agreement and after donating a minimum of 48 hours of approved volunteer service within a previous consecutive 12-month period.
 - a. The senior volunteer park pass is valid for one year from the date of issue.
 9. A veteran is eligible for a no fee individual military pass during the month of August.
 - a. In order to qualify for the no fee individual military pass, a veteran, reserve, or active duty member of any branch of the armed forces of the United States, must provide at least one form of past or present military identification to the Division in order to receive the free Military pass. Acceptable forms of military identification include:

- (1) DD214;
- (2) DD Form 2;
- (3) DD Form 2765;
- (4) Active, retired or veteran military identification cards;
- (5) A current Colorado Driver's License or state issued identification card with the word 'Veteran' printed on it as specified in 42-2-303 (5)(a), C.R.S.;
- (6) VA medical card.

10. A no-fee individual "Check Out State Parks" Library Program Pass is available for check out from Colorado libraries.

702 - COMMISSION AUTHORITY

1. ~~1.~~ The Commission may waive the requirement for a park pass, or it may close any state park or state recreation area, or portions thereof, whenever it finds the action necessary to protect and promote the health, safety and general welfare of the people of this state.

4-2. "Pass" as used in these regulations means a physical or electronic document or product provided for by statute, Commission rule or regulation and issued or required by the Division authorizing entrance to any state park or state recreation area.

708 - PASS AND PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE

1. The fees for the types of vehicle passes issued by the Division are as follows.

- a. Aspen leaf annual pass.....\$70.00
- b. Annual affixed vehicle pass.....\$80.00
- c. State parks annual ~~hang tag~~transferable pass\$120.00
- d. Each additional annual affixed vehicle pass for noncommercial vehicles.....\$40.00
 - (1) Each additional Aspen Leaf vehicle pass for noncommercial vehicles.....\$35.00
- e. Each replacement annual affixed vehicle pass.....\$5.00
- f. Each replacement state parks annual ~~hang tag~~transferable vehicle pass\$60.00
- e. Each daily vehicle pass (exceptions follow).....\$8.00
 - (1) At Cherry Creek, Chatfield, and Boyd Lake State Recreation Areas, and Eldorado Canyon State Parks.....\$9.00

- f. Each daily vehicle pass for a passenger van or bus operated by a commercial business:
 - (1) carrying up to fifteen passengers.....\$10.00
 - (2) carrying sixteen to thirty passengers.....\$40.00
 - (3) carrying more than thirty passengers.....\$50.00

- 2. The fees for the types of individual passes issued by the Division are as follows. Eligibility requirements are stated in regulation # 701.
 - a. Columbine or Centennial annual pass.....\$14.00
 - b. Each replacement Columbine or Centennial annual pass.....\$5.00
 - c. Individual daily passes (applies to persons sixteen years of age or older) for Barr Lake, Crawford, Colorado State Forest, Eldorado Canyon, Elkhead Reservoir, Harvey Gap, Highline Lake, James M. Robb - Colorado River, Lory, Pearl Lake, Rifle Gap, Rifle Falls, Stagecoach, Steamboat Lake, Sweitzer Lake, Sylvan Lake, Trinidad Lake, Vega and Yampa River State Parks and Arkansas Headwaters Recreation Area.....\$4.00

- 3. The fees associated with special activities, as provided for in regulation # 703 are:
 - a. Special activity alternate individual fee (applies to groups of twenty or more people in size).....\$4.00
 - b. Special activity application filing fee.....\$30.00

- 4. The fees for the type of campground-use permits issued by the Division are as follows. Campground classes are defined in regulation # 704. These fees do not include any applicable accommodations tax.
 - a. Campground-use permit for "Full Hookup Campgrounds"\$41.00/night
 - b. Campground-use permit for "Electrical Campgrounds"\$36.00/night
 - c. Campground-use permit for "Basic Campgrounds"\$28.00/night
 - d. Campground-use permit for "Primitive Campgrounds"\$18.00/night

- 5. The fees for reduced rate Aspen Leaf and senior Columbine, Centennial, Blue Spruce or Volunteer park pass campground-use permits issued by the Division are as follows. Eligibility requirements are stated in regulation # 701, # 705 and # 712. Reduced rates are offered all days of the year when the campground is open, except weekends and holidays. These fees do not include any applicable accommodations tax.
 - a. Campground-use permit for "Full Hookup Campgrounds"\$38.00/night
 - b. Campground-use permit for "Electrical Campgrounds"\$33.00/night
 - c. Campground-use permit for "Basic Campgrounds"\$25.00/night
 - d. Campground-use permit for "Primitive Campgrounds"\$15.00/night

6. The fees for types of campground-use areas are as follows. Campground classes are defined in regulation # 704. These fees do not include any applicable accommodations tax.

- a. In group camp areas of "Full Hookup Campgrounds," the fee shall be \$41.00 per night per campsite assigned to such group area.
- b. In group camp areas of "Electrical Campgrounds," the fee shall be \$36.00 per night per campsite assigned to such group area.
- c. In group camp areas of "Basic Campgrounds," the fee shall be \$28.00 per night per campsite assigned to such group area.
- d. In group camp areas of "Primitive Campgrounds," the fee shall be \$18.00 per night per campsite assigned to such group area.

7. The fees for types of cabins and yurts are as follows. These fees do not include any applicable accommodations tax:

- a. For small cabins and yurts that may accommodate a maximum of six people:
 - (1) Standard.....\$90.00/night
 - (2) Premium.....\$120.00/night
- b. For large cabins and yurts that may accommodate seven or more people:
 - (1) Standard.....\$120.00/night
 - (2) Premium two bedroom.....\$150.00/night
 - (3) Premium three bedroom.....\$190.00/night
 - (4) Premium four bedroom.....\$250.00/night
 - (5) Each additional premium bedroom over four bedrooms.....\$60.00/night
- c. For Mueller State Park Cabins and Harmsen Ranch at Golden Gate Canyon State Park:
 - (1) Premium two bedroom.....\$150.00/night
 - (2) Premium three bedroom.....\$210.00/night
 - (3) Premium four bedroom.....\$270.00/night
- d. The maximum occupancy shall be posted in each cabin and yurt.
- e. There shall be an additional fee of \$10.00/night for pets where pets are allowed. For barn and corral facilities, there shall be a boarding fee of \$10.00/animal/night.
- f. Premium facilities contain showers and flush toilets.

8. The fees associated with the reservation system for phone or internet sales are as follows:

- a. Each reservation change or cancellation.....\$6.00/each
 - (1) For cancellations made fourteen days or more prior to the beginning date of the reservation, the cancellation fee will be charged.
 - (2) For cancellations made less than fourteen days prior to the beginning date of the reservation, the cancellation fee will be charged as well as the first night's camping fee.
 - b. On-park facility reservation fee.....\$10.00/facility
 - (1) For group camping areas, group picnic areas, and event facilities, the cancellation fees shall be as described in regulations # 704, # 706, and # 708, respectively.
9. The group picnic area permit fees for the permits issued by the Division are as follows. Group picnic area classes are defined in regulation # 706.
- a. Permit for "Class A - Deluxe Group Picnic Area"\$150.00
 - b. Permit for "Class B - Improved Group Picnic Area"\$100.00
 - c. Permit for "Class C - Basic Group Picnic Area"\$50.00
10. Event facility permit fees are as follows.
- a. For Bridge Canyon Overlook and Pikes Peak Amphitheater at Castlewood Canyon State Park, Prairie Falcon Amphitheater at Cheyenne Mountain State Park, Panorama Point at Golden Gate Canyon State Park, Soldier Canyon Shelter at Lory State Park, and Lyons Overlook at Roxborough State Park:
 - (1) Monday through Friday.....\$150.00/2 HOURS
 - (2) Saturday and Sunday.....\$300.00/2 HOURS
 - b. For event facilities numbers 1 and 3 at Castlewood Canyon State Park and Timber Event Facility at Lory State Park:
 - (1) Monday through Friday.....\$100.00
 - (2) Saturday and Sunday.....\$150.00
 - c. For event facility number 2 at Castlewood Canyon State Park, Fountain Valley Overlook at Roxborough State Park and South Eltuck Event Facility at Lory State Park:
 - (1) Monday through Friday.....\$75.00
 - (2) Saturday and Sunday.....\$125.00
 - d. For the Red Barn at Golden Gate Canyon State Park:
 - (1) Monday through Friday.....\$150.00
 - (2) Saturday and Sunday.....\$200.00

- e. For Mariner Point at Boyd Lake State Park:
 - (1) Monday through Friday.....\$90.00
 - (2) Saturday, Sunday, and holidays.....\$180.00
- f. For Prairie Skipper event facility at Cheyenne Mountain State Park:
 - (1) Monday through Friday\$150.00/DAY
 - (2) Saturday and Sunday.....\$200.00/DAY
- g. For PA-CO-CHU-PUK event facilities at Ridgway State Park:
 - (1) Single event shelter A or B:
 - (a) Monday through Thursday.....\$125.00 plus \$10 non-refundable reservation fee/DAY
 - (b) Friday through Sunday and holidays\$190.00 plus \$10 non-refundable reservation fee/DAY
- h. For Overlook event facility at Ridgway State Park:
 - (1) Monday through Thursday.....\$190 plus \$10 non-refundable reservation fee/ 4 HOURS
 - (2) Friday through Sunday and holidays....\$240 plus \$10 non-refundable reservation fee/ 4 HOURS
- i. Conference and/or meeting rooms.....\$100.00/DAY
- j. Cancellation fees for event facility reservations are equal to 25% of the base fee if the cancellation is made more than fourteen days prior to the reserved date. If a cancellation is made within fourteen days prior to the event, the cancellation fee shall be 100% of the total event permit fee.
- k. The maximum occupancy and hours of operation shall be posted at each event facility.
- 11. The fees associated with dog off leash areas at Chatfield State Park and Cherry Creek State Park, as provided for in regulation # 100 are:
 - a. Dog off-leash annual pass.....\$25.00
 - b. Dog off-leash daily pass.....\$3.00
- 12. The fee associated with the mandatory youth education course for motorboat operators...\$15.00
- 13. The fees associated with the Cheyenne Mountain State Park Field/3D Archery Range are as follows:
 - a. Daily individual archery range permit.....\$3.00
 - b. Annual individual archery range permit.....\$30.00

14. The fees associated with the Cameo Shooting and Education Complex are as follows:
- a. Individual passes:
 - (1) Individual day use pass (single day)\$12.00
 - (2) Individual day use pass (5 consecutive days)\$48.00
 - (3) Individual day use pass (10 consecutive days)\$84.00
 - (4) Individual annual pass\$150.00
 - (5) Individual three-year pass\$400.00
 - b. Youth (ages 7-17) individual passes:
 - (1) Youth individual day use pass (single day)\$3.00
 - (2) Youth individual day use pass (5 consecutive days) \$12.00
 - (3) Youth individual day use pass (10 consecutive days).....\$21.00
 - (4) Youth individual annual pass \$50.00
 - c. Two adult (Buddy) passes:
 - (1) Two adult day use passes (single day)\$20.00
 - (2) Two adult day use passes (5 consecutive days)\$80.00
 - (3) Two adult day use passes (10 consecutive days)\$140.00
 - (4) Both adult passes must be used on the same day(s).
 - d. Family passes (Two adults and all children (ages 7-17) that live at the same address):
 - (1) Family annual pass\$300.00
 - (2) Family three-year pass\$600.00
 - e. Group day use passes:
 - (1) Day use passes for 10 to 19 individuals\$9.00/person
 - (2) Day use passes for 20 to 29 individuals\$7.00/person
 - (3) Day use passes for 30 or more individuals\$3.00/person
 - f. Corporate passes:
 - (1) Annual corporate pass (10 unassigned passes per day) ...\$3,000.00
 - g. All annual passes for the Cameo Shooting and Education Complex are valid 365 days from the date of purchase.

15. It is unlawful for any person to transfer, sell, or assign any pass or permit issued by the Division, including special activity permits, campground use permits, and group picnic area permits, unless otherwise permitted by these regulations.

709 - REGISTRATION FEE SCHEDULE

1. The fees for types of vessel registrations issued by the Division are as follows:
- a. Vessel registration (including annual resident registration and each rental vessel registration):
 - (1) For vessels less than twenty feet in length.....\$35.00
 - (2) For vessels twenty feet to less than thirty feet in length.....\$45.00
 - (3) For vessels thirty feet or more in length.....\$75.00
 - (a) Dealer registration for all vessels owned by a dealer which are operated for research, testing, experimentation, or demonstration purposes only:
 - (i) When the dealer sells twenty-five or fewer vessels within the preceding year.....\$45.00
 - (ii) When the dealer sells more than twenty-five vessels within the preceding year.....\$75.00
 - (b) Manufacturer registration for all vessels owned by a manufacturer which are operated for demonstration or testing purposes only.....\$25.00
 - (c) Nonresident annual vessel registration for a person from a state or country where registration is not permitted.....\$50.00
2. The fees for the types of snowmobile registrations issued by the Division are as follows:
- a. Snowmobile registration (including annual resident registration and each rental snowmobile).....\$30.00
 - b. Dealer registration for all snowmobiles owned by a snowmobile dealer which are operated for demonstration or testing purposes only:
 - (1) When the dealer sells twenty-five or fewer snowmobiles within the preceding year.....\$35.00
 - (2) When the dealer sells more than twenty-five snowmobiles within the preceding year.....\$60.00
 - c. Manufacturer registration for all snowmobiles owned by a manufacturer which are operated for research, testing, experimentation or demonstration purposes only.....\$35.00
 - d. Nonresident annual snowmobile permit.....\$30.00
3. The fees for the types of off-highway vehicle registrations issued by the Division are as follows:

- a. Off-highway vehicle registration and nonresident off-highway vehicle permit.....\$25.00
 - b. Dealer registration for all off-highway vehicles owned by an off-highway vehicle dealer and operated for demonstration or testing purposes only:
 - (1) When the dealer sells twenty-five or less off-highway vehicles within the preceding year.....\$35.00
 - (2) When the dealer sells more than twenty-five off- highway vehicles within the preceding year.....\$60.00
 - c. Manufacturer registration for off-highway vehicles owned by a manufacturer which are operated solely for research, testing, experimentation, or demonstration purposes.....\$35.00
 - d. Registration for off-highway vehicles owned by a lessor for rental purposes only:
 - (1) When the lessor owns ten or less off-highway vehicles within the preceding year.....\$35.00
 - (2) When the lessor owns more than ten off-highway vehicles within the preceding year.....\$60.00
4. A duplicate vessel, snowmobile, or off-highway vehicle registration.....\$5.00

710 - Lone Mesa State Park Hunting Special Use Permit

- 1. Purpose: This hunting management plan is designed to establish administration of hunting activities on Lone Mesa State Park.
- 2. Special Use Permit Procedure
 - a. Permit Numbers
 - (1) Colorado Parks and Wildlife (CPW) deems hunting activities on Lone Mesa State Park as those which currently require “special planning and/or scheduling for proper management.” Therefore, CPW issues special use permits to visitors wishing to engage in hunting use of the park.
 - (2) The maximum number of approved Hunting Special Use Permits (HUPs) on Lone Mesa State Park at any one time during the following big game seasons is:
 - Archery: twenty (20)
 - Muzzle-loading: twelve (12)
 - 1st separate elk rifle: fifteen (15)
 - 2nd combined deer/elk rifle: twenty-five (25)
 - 3rd combined deer/elk rifle: thirty-five (35)
 - 4th combined deer/elk rifle: thirty-five (35)

- (3) Each year, the Division, by action of the Park Manager, will allocate HUPs up to the maximums after evaluating harvest and other data in the interest of creating a high quality hunter opportunity consistent with wildlife objectives.

b. Permit Fees

- (1) Successful permit applicants shall pay the fee associated with their HUP (see fee schedule section b.5) at least thirty (30) days prior to any access to Lone Mesa State Park.
- (2) Upon payment of the fee and attendance of the mandatory orientation session, an HUP shall be issued to the applicant.
- (3) If an applicant who is successful in the drawing (see section c.7.) fails to pay the HUP fee, a permit will not be issued to them. The next qualified applicant on the drawing log (see section c. 8.), or the next first-come, first-served applicant will be offered an HUP.
- (4) If, at a later date, an applicant's payment of the HUP fee is found to be insufficient due to payment stops, insufficient funds or any other reason, an HUP will not be issued to them. And, if an HUP had been issued prior to CPW discovering the insufficient payment, that permit will be voided.
- (5) The schedule of fees associated with the HUP is as follows:
 - (a) The fee for the HUP allowing Colorado residents access to Lone Mesa State Park to hunt during archery season, \$100.
 - (b) The fee for the HUP allowing Colorado nonresidents access to Lone Mesa State Park to hunt during archery season, \$200.
 - (c) The fee for the HUP allowing Colorado residents access to Lone Mesa State Park to hunt antlerless elk and/or antlerless deer during muzzleloading season, \$100.
 - (d) The fee for the HUP allowing Colorado residents access to Lone Mesa State Park to hunt antlered elk and/or antlered deer during muzzleloading season, \$200.
 - (e) The fee for the HUP allowing Colorado nonresidents access to Lone Mesa State Park to hunt antlerless elk and/or antlerless deer during muzzleloading season, \$200.
 - (f) The fee for the HUP allowing Colorado nonresidents access to Lone Mesa State Park to hunt antlered elk and/or antlered deer during muzzleloading season, \$300.
 - (g) The fee for the HUP allowing Colorado residents access to Lone Mesa State Park to hunt elk during the first elk-only rifle season, \$150.
 - (h) The fee for the HUP allowing Colorado nonresidents access to Lone Mesa State Park to hunt elk during the first elk-only rifle season, \$250.

- (i) The fee for the HUP allowing Colorado residents access to Lone Mesa State Park to hunt antlerless elk and/or antlerless deer during the second, third, or fourth combined elk/deer rifle season, \$100.
 - (j) The fee for the HUP allowing Colorado nonresidents access to Lone Mesa State Park to hunt antlerless elk and/or antlerless deer during the second, third, or fourth combined elk/deer rifle season, \$200.
 - (k) The fee for the HUP allowing Colorado residents access to Lone Mesa State Park to hunt antlered elk and/or antlered deer during the second, third, or fourth combined elk/deer rifle season, \$200.
 - (l) The fee for the HUP allowing Colorado nonresidents access to Lone Mesa State Park to hunt antlered elk and/or antlered deer during the second, third, or fourth combined elk/deer rifle season, \$300.
- (6) Only one access permit is required per hunter, per season. A hunter possessing valid licenses for multiple species among deer, elk and bear will pay the highest applicable permit fee and can hunt with all valid licenses. The HUP continues to be valid until termination of the permitted season or harvest of all valid deer, elk, and bear licenses in the hunter's possession, whichever comes first.

c. Allocation of Permits

- (1) Advertising: it shall be the responsibility of the park manager or his/her designee to advertise the availability of HUPs for Lone Mesa through normal media and internet formats.
- (2) Application requests: requests for the application for the HUP on Lone Mesa State Park can be made by contacting the Lone Mesa State Park office: 1321 Railroad Ave, PO Box 1047, Dolores, Colorado 81323, Phone: [970-533-7065](tel:970-533-7065) ~~970-882-2213~~, Fax: 970-882-4640, e-mail: lone.mesa.park@state.co.us. Applications may also be accessed via the internet at www.cpw.state.co.us
- (3) Requests for permit applications shall be acted upon promptly, and an application for permit shall be mailed, faxed or e-mailed to the prospective permittee within five days of receiving the request.
- (4) Permit applications must be mailed, e-mailed, or faxed to the Lone Mesa State Park office at the above address prior to the application deadline. It is the applicant's responsibility to confirm receipt.
- (5) Permit applications will be secured by the park manager or his/her designee until the scheduled public drawing to be held at the Lone Mesa State Park office at least 60 days prior to the opening of the archery season. The public opening of applications will be advertised locally and to the applicants.
- (6) Once opened, the HUP applications will be checked for completeness, logged by applicant name, season desired, and application number, and a drawing "chip" - reflecting the application number- will be created for each complete and legible qualifying application.
- (7) Drawing: after applications are opened and logged in the application log, the drawing for successful applicants will take place. There will be drawings for each

of the six big game seasons for which hunting will be permitted on Lone Mesa: archery, muzzleloading, 1st separate limited elk, 2nd combined deer and elk, 3rd combined deer and elk, and 4th combined deer and elk. Permits will be issued up to the numbers outlined in this regulation, #601.2.a.

- (8) The drawing will continue until all "chips" are drawn, and a drawing log will be completed which will list the applicants in the order drawn. The drawing log will be used to facilitate fair re-allocation of permits per the re-allocation of unused permits protocol (see section 3.c.).
- (9) Successful applicants will be notified of their success by mail via a letter of successful application, which shall include a summary of rules associated with the HUP (a complete list shall be provided with the permit during the required orientation and information for remittance of the HUP fee).

d. Reporting and Filing

- (1) All files pertaining to the HUP for Lone Mesa State Park will be stored at the Lone Mesa State Park office.
- (2) The park manager or designee will include a summary of hunting activity under permit on the park manager monthly report.
- (3) Revenues derived from the HUP fee will be deposited in the parks cash fund and reflected on the consignment usage/revenue report for the month such fees are deposited.

3. Field Enforcement Procedure

a. Possession of Permit

- (1) Copies of the permitted hunter list will be made available to commissioned CPW officers and the officers of other cooperating agencies in the interest of maintaining compliance with this plan.
- (2) It shall be the permittee's responsibility to adequately identify themselves as a permit holder when contacted while hunting in Lone Mesa State Park.

b. Statute and Regulation Compliance

- (1) Permit holders will be supplied a list of rules associated with the HUP upon issuance of the permit. Failure to comply with the rules of the permit may result in permit revocation.
- (2) Nothing in this plan or in the rules of the HUP shall imply or be construed to imply that HUP holders are exempt from any statute or regulation governing hunting, motor vehicle operation, conduct on a state park, or other activity in which the permit holder may engage while performing the activities allowed under the permit. These statutes and regulations include, but are not limited to:
 - (a) Permit holders must possess a valid license issued by CPW for the Game Management Unit, species, and season hunted.

- (b) Vehicles involved in hunting use of the park are required to display a valid Colorado State Parks pass, unless the vehicle displays a Disabled Veteran license plate.

c. Reallocation of Permits

- (1) Permit re-allocations may take place in the event a permittee is unable to engage in the activities of the permit for any reason, including sickness, death, hunting license revocation, permit revocation, park eviction, or simple changes in plans.
- (2) Re-allocations of HUPs will be conducted following this procedure:
 - (a) The park manager or designee will attempt to contact the next individual on the drawing log by phone.
 - (b) If the next individual is unable to be contacted upon the first call, the park manager or designee will continue down the drawing log until an individual can be contacted and notified of the availability of an HUP for Lone Mesa.
 - (c) If no hunter on the drawing log can be contacted, no applicant is qualified, or none is available to hunt the remainder of the season, the availability of the HUP will be advertised by the park manager or designee and the permit may be allocated on a first-come, first-served basis.
 - (d) Hunters who are contacted via the drawing log and who obtain or decline an HUP for Lone Mesa will have their name removed from the drawing log.
- (3) Re-allocated permits shall not be valid until payment of the HUP fee and attendance of the hunter orientation by the new permittee.

712 – FEE WAIVERS, SPONSORSHIPS, MARKETING DISCOUNTS AND REDUCED RATE CAMPING

- 1. As referenced in this chapter, “Park Product” means any entry pass, permit, facility, event or other user fee as defined in regulation # 700 through # 701, # 703 through # 708 and #710 through #711.
- 2. Park product fees may be waived for errors committed by the Division.
- 3. Park product fees may be waived by the Division for Division sponsored education, outreach, volunteer or safety activities (events); for supporting partner activities (events) and research activities that directly support the Division; for official business by other governmental agencies conducted on a state recreation area or state park or for Division administrative purposes.
- 4. The Division may waive entry fees as described in regulation # 700 through # 701 up to four days annually to market and increase awareness of state recreation areas and state parks.
- 5. Park Managers may provide any combination of park product(s) up to \$500 in value per fiscal year, per park, to be used as a sponsorship as a part of a fundraiser, promotion or marketing effort for local community supporting partners.
- 6. Region Offices and the Creative Services and Marketing Office may provide up to twenty annual affixed vehicle passes and twenty state parks annual ~~hang-tag~~transferable passes as defined in regulation # 700-3.b and #700-3.c. per fiscal year, per office, to be used as part of a regional or

statewide fundraiser, promotion or marketing effort. In addition, Region Offices and the Creative Services and Marketing Office may provide daily vehicle passes as defined in regulation # No. 700-4 up to \$500 in value per fiscal year, per office, to be used as part of a regional or statewide fundraiser, promotion or marketing effort.

7. The Division may offer discounts up to 50 percent off established fees for annual affixed vehicle and daily vehicle passes as defined in regulation # 700-3 through # 700-4 as part of a consistent statewide effort to market state recreation areas and state parks.
8. Annual affixed vehicle passes or state parks annual ~~hang tag~~transferable passes purchased in large quantities during a single sale, transaction will be discounted as follows.
 - (a) Twenty or more passes, but less than fifty.....20% discount
 - (b) Fifty or more passes, but less than one hundred.....25% discount
 - (c) One hundred passes or more.....30% discount
9. Notwithstanding the established campground fees, the Region Manager may lower a campground's classification by one class, and consequently lower the campground fee, when the Region Manager determines that it is necessary to do so based upon one or more of the following criteria:
 - (a) A significant increase in the vacancy rate for the campground exists.
 - (b) A significant need to rehabilitate the campground facilities exists.
 - (c) A temporary closure of campground facilities is necessary in order to implement repairs.

Upon a determination by the Region Manager that the cause for lowering the campground classification has been abated, the original campground classification will be reinstated.
10. Notwithstanding the established campground, cabin and yurt fees, the Regional Manager may reduce the fees for use of all campsites, cabins and yurts when determined necessary to encourage occupancy and otherwise increase use, subject to the following limitations:
 - (a) Fees may be reduced up to 50 percent.
 - (b) Reduced fees, if any, and the time periods for such reductions will be established by March 1 annually for the next reservation year and be posted at the park and on the Division website. Reservations made prior to the March 1st posting shall not be subject to any such fee reduction.
11. Notwithstanding the established event facility permit fees, the Regional Manager may offer half-day facility rentals and reduce the fees for use of event facilities when determined necessary to encourage occupancy and otherwise increase use, subject to the following limitations:
 - (a) Fees may be reduced up to 50 percent.
 - (b) Reduced fees, if any, and the time periods for such reductions will be established by March 1 annually and posted at the park and on the Division website. Reservations made prior to the March 1st posting shall not be subject to any such fee reduction.

12. Individuals possessing a valid Aspen Leaf annual pass per regulation # 705 or a Columbine, Centennial, Blue Spruce or Volunteer individual pass holder per regulation # 701 who is 64 years of age or older, shall receive campground use permits at a reduced rate equal to the current Aspen Leaf pass holder camping permit rate. This reduced rate applies to all nights of the year when such areas are open, except weekend nights and the night before a legal holiday. For the purpose of determining reduced rate campground permit eligibility, "weekend" night means the time period beginning at 12 noon on Friday through 12 noon on Sunday, and the night before a legal "Holiday" shall mean the time period beginning at 12 noon on the day prior to the legal holiday through 12 noon of the legal holiday. The discount is only valid for a single campsite per day, per pass holder. The pass holder must hold a pass that qualifies them for the reduced rate at both the time of reservation and at the time of occupancy. The pass holder must also be the one to make the reservation and be an occupant of the campsite for the entirety of the reservation.

The camping permit reduced fees associated with the Aspen Leaf annual pass are identified in regulation # 708.

ARTICLE II - DIVISION AGENTS

See also § 33-4-101, C.R.S. and § 33-12-104 (1) C.R.S., for statutory provisions applicable to Division agents.

#713 – DEFINITIONS

- A. **"Division Product"** means any license, pass, permit, or registration which is sold through the Division of Parks and Wildlife integrated system.
- B. **"Accountable Inventory"** means equipment or stock which is assigned to agents and which they are responsible to return to the Division or the system agent upon request. Types of accountable inventory include, but are not limited to:
1. **"Division Product Stock"** means the specialized paper stock used for the printing of Division products by a Division agent.
 2. **"Receipt Stock"** means the specialized paper stock used for the printing of receipts or affidavits by a license agent.
 3. **"Point of Sale (POS) Terminal"** means all machine components which license agents use to access the Division's electronic licensing system and conduct license transactions.
- C. **"Automatic Cash Handling" ("ACH")** means the direct electronic transfer of funds from one bank account to another,
- D. **"Division Agent"** means a business (sole proprietorship, partnership, or corporation) which is authorized to sell Division products from a specific location as an agent of the Division of Parks and Wildlife. Types of agencies are defined as follows:
1. **"Retail Agent"** means a business which sells Division products for the Division from its retail store or other location of record.
 2. **"Consolidated Agent"** means a retail agent which sells Division products for the Division from two or more stores or other locations of record and which is licensed to conduct all business with the Division as a single entity.
 3. **"System Agent"** means the company contracted by the Division to operate its

integrated parks and wildlife system, including, but not limited to, the provision of any accountable inventory or other necessary materials to retail agents; the maintenance of the electronic system and provision of electronic reports to the Division; the sale of Division products by telephone and through an internet site; the acceptance of applications through the internet site for the limited license drawings; and the printing and distribution of such licenses to the recipients (license fulfillment).

- E. **"Location of Record"** means the street address of the retail store or other specified business location(s) from which an agent sells Division products, as specified in the agent agreement or system agent contract.

#720 – AGENT COMMISSION RATES

See also §33-4-101 C.R.S. relative to CPW agents and §33-4-102(1.6)(b) C.R.S. for price indexing information for nonresident big game licenses.

- A. Commission Rates for Retail Agents:
1. Division agents shall be paid a 4.75% commission for each license sold electronically, except for those licenses with commissions as shown below in Table A.4.
 2. Division agents shall be paid a 5% commission for each pass sold electronically.
 3. Division agents who sell registrations shall be paid a flat rate of \$1.00 per registration issued.
 4. Other Commission Rates:

Table A.4: Division Product Type	20182019 Commission	% of license price in 2018-2019	20192020 Commission	% of license price in 20192020
Second Rod Stamp	\$.34.60	6.206.7%	\$.60.61	6.7%
Resident Fishing - 1 day	\$.62.80	7.756.7%	\$.80.81	6.7%
Nonresident Fishing – 1 day	\$.621.00	7.756.7%	\$1.001.02	6.7%
Fishing - 5 day	\$1.232.01	6.156.7%	\$2.012.04	6.7%
Resident Small Game - 1 day	\$.62.80	6.206.7%	\$.80.81	6.7%
Nonresident Small Game – 1 day	\$.621.00	6.206.7%	\$1.001.02	6.7%
Nonresident Deer	\$13.9014.22	3.523.6%	\$14.2214.40	3.6%
Nonresident Pronghorn	\$13.9014.22	3.523.6%	\$14.2214.40	3.6%
Nonresident Bear	\$12.953.60	3.703.6%	\$3.60	3.6%
Nonresident Mountain Lion	\$12.9512.60	3.703.6%	\$12.60	3.6%
Nonresident Antlerless Elk	\$17.5517.82	3.553.6%	\$17.8218.05	3.6%
Nonresident Either-sex Elk	\$23.4023.76	3.553.6%	\$23.7624.07	3.6%
Nonresident Antlered Elk	\$23.4023.76	3.553.6%	\$23.7624.07	3.6%

Nonresident Rocky Mtn Bighorn Sheep	\$77.2579.56	3.503.6%	\$79.5680.58	3.6%
Nonresident Desert Bighorn Sheep	\$51.6079.56	3.513.6%	\$79.5680.58	3.6%
Nonresident Goat	\$77.2579.56	3.503.6%	\$79.5680.58	3.6%
Nonresident Moose	\$77.2579.56	3.503.6%	\$79.5680.58	3.6%

All ~~2018-2019~~ licenses sold through March ~~2019-2020~~ shall be sold at the ~~2018-2019~~ license fee and commission rates.

B. Commission Rates for the System Agent: The system agent shall be paid the commissions shown in the Table B.1 below for each license sold through the system:

1. Commission pricing for any CPW Commissionable Product sold through IPAWS

Table B.1: Commission Rates	IPAWS Products
a. Contractor Commission Fee percent commission rate to cover AWO System operation and maintenance cost for those products less than \$100 and not listed below in c.	3.7%
b. Contractor Commission Fee flat fee commission rate to cover AWO System operation and maintenance cost for those products \$100 or greater and not listed below in c.	\$4.25
c.1. All Wildlife Applications, regardless of Product Cost.	\$4.25
c.2. Parks variable cost products, regardless of actual Product Cost.	3.7%
Breakout Costs	
Contractor credit card fee	2.2%
Contractor fulfillment fee	\$1.45

721 – REGISTRATIONS-ONLY AGENTS

1. Registration-only agents: except for agents exempted from surety requirements in accordance with C.R.S. 33-12-104(9) when cash sales are made to financially secured agents they shall be subject to the following conditions:
 - a. Purchase of accountable inventory registrations shall be made at the designated Division office or by submitting funds by mail to the designated address. Funds submitted for purchase must be in the exact amount of the Division's share for the number of registrations;
 - b. All mail orders shall be placed on forms supplied by the Division.
 - c. Redemption of unsold registrations may be made at the designated Division office or by submitting unsold registrations to the Division by mail.
 - d. The termination procedures of registration agents who purchase registrations for cash shall include having the agent turn over to the Division or its representative all unsold registrations.
 - e. Yearly submit final payment and return all unused accountable inventory by no later than November 15. Registrations may be carried over from year to year unless otherwise notified by the Division, in which case instructions will be given as to return/payment deadlines.

MAILING - 11/01/2019
Basis and Purpose
Chapter P-7 - Passes, Permits and Registrations

Basis and Purpose:

Addition of the Definition of Pass, Including a Physical or Electronic Document or Product

The Parks and Wildlife Commission has instructed staff to examine utilizing electronic passes. Prior to this change, there was no definition of pass in regulations. To allow for the use of electronic passes, a definition of a pass was added which clarifies that a pass can be either a physical or an electronic document or product. This also sets the stage for a broader discussion on what type of electronic passes the agency and the Commission could offer in the future.

Consumer Price Index Commission Fee Adjustments

Previously adopted regulations set the retail agent commission at 4.75% of the license fee, except for those commissions that are fixed, as described below. Statutorily, the Commission may set these rates wherever feasible. Historically, the year-to-year Consumer Price Index (CPI) change has been used as a guideline for setting these rates. However, in 2019 CPW proposed fixed commission rates for different types of licenses (6.7% for fishing/small game, and 3.6% for nonresident big game). The fixed rates approved in 2019 yield the following retail agent commissions for the 2020 license year:

Division Product Type	2019	2019	2020	2020
	Commission	% of license price	Statutory Price	Commission
Second Rod Stamp	\$ 0.60	6.7%	\$ 9.12	\$ 0.61
Resident Fishing - 1 day	\$ 0.80	6.7%	\$ 12.15	\$ 0.81
Nonresident Fishing - 1 day	\$ 1.00	6.7%	\$ 15.19	\$ 1.02
Fishing - 5 day	\$ 2.01	6.7%	\$ 30.39	\$ 2.04
Resident Small Game - 1 day	\$ 0.80	6.7%	\$ 12.15	\$ 0.81
Nonresident Small Game - 1 day	\$ 1.00	6.7%	\$ 15.19	\$ 1.02
Nonresident Deer	\$ 14.22	3.6%	\$ 400.08	\$ 14.40
Nonresident Pronghorn	\$ 14.22	3.6%	\$ 400.08	\$ 14.40
Nonresident Bear	\$ 3.60	3.6%	\$ 668.50	\$ 24.07
Nonresident Mountain Lion	\$ 12.60	3.6%	\$ 668.50	\$ 24.07
Nonresident Antlerless Elk	\$ 17.82	3.6%	\$ 668.50	\$ 24.07
Nonresident Either-sex Elk	\$ 23.76	3.6%	\$ 668.50	\$ 24.07
Nonresident Antlered Elk	\$ 23.76	3.6%	\$ 668.50	\$ 24.07
Nonresident Rocky Mtn Bighorn Sheep	\$ 79.56	3.6%	\$ 2,238.45	\$ 80.58
Nonresident Desert Bighorn Sheep	\$ 79.56	3.6%	\$ 2,238.45	\$ 80.58
Nonresident Goat	\$ 79.56	3.6%	\$ 2,238.45	\$ 80.58
Nonresident Moose	\$ 79.56	3.6%	\$ 2,238.45	\$ 80.58

Some of these commission rates have been lowered, however, to reflect the price reduction of these products, these include nonresident bear, nonresident mountain lion, and nonresident antlerless elk.

The statements of basis and purpose for these regulations can be viewed and copies obtained from the Colorado Division of Parks and Wildlife, Office of the Regulations Manager, Policy and Planning Unit, 1313 Sherman, Room 111, Denver, CO 80203.

The primary statutory authority for these regulations can be found in § 24-4-103, C.R.S., and the state Parks Act, §§ 33-10-101 to 33-33-113, C.R.S., and specifically including, but not limited to: §§ 33-10-106 and 33-10-107, C.R.S.

EFFECTIVE DATE - THESE REGULATIONS SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2020 AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT UNTIL REPEALED, AMENDED OR SUPERSEDED.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE PARKS AND WILDLIFE COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF COLORADO THIS 14TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2019.

**APPROVED:
Michelle Zimmerman
Acting Chair**

**ATTEST:
James Vigil
Secretary**